

Relationship and Sex Education Policy



Sponsorship & Review

1 Sponsor

Assistant Vice Principal - Personal Development, Culture and Ethos

2	Reviewed

February 2024

3 Revised

March 2024

Contents

1. Introduction	3
2. Delivery of RSE	5
3. Aims	7
4. Statutory requirements	8
5. Roles and responsibilities	10
6. Monitoring arrangements	11
7. Parents' right to withdraw	11
8. Policy development	11
9. Training	12
10. Safeguarding	12
11. Complaints procedure	12
12. Module outcomes and lesson overview	13
13. Module outcomes and assessment overview	14
Appendix 1 - DfE RSE Learning outcomes for KS4	15

1. Introduction

This Relationship and Sex Education Policy is based on the statutory guidance from DfE issued under Section 80A of the Education Act 2002 and section 403 of the Education Act 1996. The Relationships Education, Relationships and Sex Education, and Health Education regulations 2019 are made under sections 34 and 35 of the Children and Social Work Act 2017.

We refer to RSE (Relationship and Sex Education); we place the emphasis upon relationships, supporting students understanding and skills in developing positive and healthy relationships.

Our definition is that this work is a lifelong learning process; it is about physical, moral and emotional development. It is about understanding the importance of marriage, stable and loving relationships, respect, love and care. It involves teaching about sex, sexuality and sexual health. It is not about the promotion of sexual identity or sexual activity.

RSE in our school is part of the personal development curriculum. It is our belief that RSE is the responsibility of all staff and should be an integral part of teaching and learning processes. Education for personal growth and self-esteem, including sex and health education complements and overlaps with the personal, social and emotional development of the child and the general life of the school, relationships with one another, including staff and parents, socialisation, values and attitudes.

We recognise the need for a whole school approach to the delivery of RSE.

Under the Education Act 2002/Academies Act 2010, all schools must provide a balanced and broadly-based curriculum which promotes the spiritual, moral, cultural, mental and physical development of students at the school and of society, and prepares students at the school for the opportunities, responsibilities and experiences of later life.

Our Approach

It is our belief that RSE is the responsibility of all staff and is integral to teaching a broad and balanced curriculum, educating the whole child and is the taught component of 'Keeping Children Safe in Education'.

We believe that students should have access to the learning they need to stay safe, healthy and understand their rights as individuals. We provide clear, impartial scientific information on matters such as the changes of puberty, contraception, abortion and assisted conception, as well as covering the law in relation to, for example, forced-marriage, female genital mutilation (FGM), consent and use of social media.

The use of offensive and sexualised language (swearing and slang terms, including homophobic language) and behaviour, will be addressed with students and as appropriate, parents and carers will be involved in accordance with our Behaviour Management Policy. We recognise that questions, issues and situations related to relationships, identity, risk, values and morals arise all the time as part of everyday school life and in a variety of lessons.

Students are encouraged to ask questions and seek advice and support from reliable and confidential sources of support, including parents, family members and the school pastoral team. The pastoral team can help identify and access external services to support students.

Students' questions will be responded to by teaching and non-teaching staff as they arise, in a straightforward manner. Information will be provided, using correct terminology for body parts and functions, appropriate to the age and maturity of the student.

Equal Opportunities

We value equality of opportunity. The RSE curriculum offers children the opportunity to discuss attitudes and values relating to equality issues and the protected characteristics of age, sex, race, disability, religion or belief, gender reassignment, pregnancy or maternity, marriage or civil partnership, or sexual orientation.

As part of our whole school approach our RSE programme fosters gender and LGBTQ+ equality, challenging all forms of discrimination and bullying. We are respectful of how students choose to identify themselves, understanding that their sexual orientation and gender identity may be emerging and fluid.

Definition

RSE is lifelong learning about sex, sexuality, emotions, relationships and sexual health. It involves acquiring information, developing skills and forming positive beliefs, values and attitudes (Sex Education Forum 1999).

RSE is about the emotional, social and cultural development of students, and involves learning about relationships, sexual health, sexuality, healthy lifestyles, diversity and personal identity.

RSE involves a combination of sharing information and exploring issues and values.

RSE is not about the promotion of sexual activity.

2. Delivery of RSE

Relationship and Sex Education at Charlton School has three main elements:

Personal and Social Skills

- Learning to manage emotions and relationships confidently and sensitively.
- Developing self-respect and empathy for others.
- Learning to make choices based on an understanding of difference and with an absence of prejudice.
- Developing an appreciation of the consequences of choices made.
- Managing conflict and learning how to recognise and avoid exploitation and abuse.

Attitudes and Values

- Learning the importance of values and individual conscience and moral considerations.
- Learning the value of family life, marriage and stable and loving relationships for the nurture of children.
- Learning the value of respect, love and care.
- Exploring, considering and understanding moral dilemmas.
- Developing critical thinking as part of decision making.

Knowledge and Understanding

- Learning and understanding physical development at appropriate stages.
- Understanding human sexuality, sexual health, emotions and relationships.
- Learning about contraception and a range of local and national sexual health advice, contraception and support services.
- Learning the reasons for delaying sexual activity, the benefits to be gained from such delay.
- The avoidance of unplanned pregnancy.

RSE is taught within the personal development, (PSHEE) education curriculum. Biological aspects of RSE are taught within the science curriculum, and other aspects are included in religious education (RE).

Students also receive stand-alone RSE topics delivered by staff within the PD curriculum. These are complemented by the work of external providers on CE days. In Year 7 the school nurse talks about puberty and throughout Years 8, 9 and 10 Loudmouth Theatre company deliver presentations and role play performances on drugs and alcohol, domestic abuse and relationships and sexual exploitation. To support these sessions, Loudmouth presenters then work with students in workshops to discuss how to deal with difficult situations through character exploration.

Throughout Years 7, 8, 9, 10 and 11, external providers deliver sessions on drugs to raise the awareness and promote the understanding of drugs and their effects. The knowledge presented in the programme builds as students progress through the school to ensure the learning is always age appropriate.

Across all Key Stages, students will be supported with developing the following skills:

- Communication, including how to manage changing relationships and emotions
- Recognising and assessing potential risks
- Assertiveness
- Seeking help and support when required
- Informed decision-making
- Self-respect and empathy for others
- Recognising and maximising a healthy lifestyle
- Managing conflict
- Discussion and group work

These skills are taught within the context of family life.

To underpin delivery of RSE by staff, we use the Shropshire Respect Yourself: RSE programme is planned to meet the DfE guidance, in conjunction with resources from the PSHEE association. The Respect Yourself project is an award-winning programme with the quality kite mark from the PSHEE Association. It is based upon national good practice criteria and Shropshire young people's priorities. It is a spiral curriculum, starting at Year 1 through to Year 11. There is a specific set of lessons and resources for each year group. Many local schools, including some of our feeder primary schools, use the programme. The RSE Transition programme for Years 6 and 7 ensures cross phase co-ordination.

3. Aims

The aims of sex and relationship education (RSE) at our school are to:

Personal and Social Skills

- Help students develop feelings of self-respect, confidence and empathy
- Increase students' self-esteem
- To understand that people with different religions, cultural differences and ethnicity may have different views, and how these should be discussed in an atmosphere of tolerance and acceptance
- Develop respect and care for others
- To help young people to understand stable and loving relationships, respect, love and care
- Provide a framework in which sensitive discussions can take place

Attitudes and Values

- Create a positive culture around issues of sexuality and relationships
- Explore a range of attitudes towards RSE issues and to help students to reach their own informed views and choices for a healthier lifestyle
- Develop skills relevant to effective management of relationships and sexual situations. Examples include communication with and empathy towards others, risk assessment, assertiveness, conflict management, decision making, seeking help and helping others
- To help young people appreciate the value of marriage for family life

Knowledge and Understanding

- Teach students about sex, sexuality and sexual health
- Prepare students for puberty, and give them an understanding of sexual development and the importance of health and hygiene
- Teach students the correct vocabulary to describe themselves and their bodies
- Provide accurate information about, and understanding of, RSE issues
- Dispel myths
- Develop an understanding of the risks of teenage pregnancy and sexually transmitted infections
- Be aware of sources of help and acquire the skills and confidence to access confidential health advice, support and treatment
- Know how the law applies to sexual relationships
- To enable students to recognise the physical, emotional and social implications of sexual behaviour and recognise that the responsibilities in relationships are shared by every individual

Students who have been identified as vulnerable, for example by students, staff or parents, will have their needs addressed individually.

4. Statutory Requirements

RSE in schools is a legal requirement. The Learning and Skills Act 2000 imposes the duty in exercising any function which may affect provision of RSE in schools and must have regard to the guidance issued by the Secretary of State under Section 403 (1A)" The Sex and Relationship Education Guidance (DfEE 2000).

The Department for Education and Employment (2000) RSE Guidance outlines that the RSE programme in secondary schools should support students to:

Personal and Social Skills

- Build self-esteem
- Communicate effectively
- Use young people as peer educators
- Have the confidence and self-esteem to value themselves and others and respect for individual conscience and the skills to judge the kind of relationships they want
- Be prepared for an adult life in which they can develop positive values and moral framework that will guide their judgements, decisions and behaviour and be aware of their sexuality and understand human sexuality
- Understand the consequences of their action and behave responsibly within sexual and pastoral relationships
- Have a clear understanding of the arguments for delaying sexual activity and resisting pressure

Attitudes and Values

- Understand the reason for having protected sex
- Have sufficient information and skills to protect themselves and, where they have one, their partner from unwanted conceptions and sexually transmitted infections, including HIV
- Avoid being exploited or exploiting others
- Avoid being pressured into unwanted or unprotected sex
- Have awareness of social media and pornography on relationships

Knowledge and Understanding

- Teach about relationships, love, care and the responsibilities of parenthood, as well as sex
- Focus on boys as much as girls
- Teach how the law applies to sexual relationships
- Ensure young people understand how the law applies to sexual relationships
- Teach the taking on of responsibility and the consequences of one's actions in relation to sexual activity and parenthood
- Provide young people with information about different types of contraception, safer sex and how they can access local sources of further advice and treatment
- Link sex and relationship education with issues of peer pressure and other risk-taking behaviour, such as drugs, smoking and alcohol
- Include information about STIs and HIV/AIDs
- Advise students where to access confidential sexual health advice support and, if necessary, treatment

All these areas have been considered in detail in the planning and sequence of delivery of our RSE curriculum at Charlton, to ensure learning is age appropriate and builds on previous knowledge.

5. Roles and Responsibilities

The Governing Board

The Governing Board will approve the RSE Policy and hold the Principal to account for its implementation.

The Principal

The Principal is responsible for ensuring that RSE is taught consistently across the school, and for managing requests to withdraw students from non-statutory components of RSE

Staff

Staff are responsible for:

- Delivering RSE in a sensitive way
- Modelling positive attitudes to RSE
- Monitoring progress
- Responding to the needs of individual students
- Responding appropriately to students whose parents wish them to be withdrawn from the nonstatutory components of RSE

Staff do not have the right to opt out of teaching RSE. Staff who have concerns about teaching RSE are encouraged to discuss this with the Principal.

Students

Students are expected to engage fully in RSE and, when discussing issues related to RSE, treat others with respect and sensitivity.

The National Curriculum is delivered by staff in the Science department. These lessons are more concerned with the physical aspects of development and reproduction, although the importance of relationships is not forgotten.

Any RSE lesson may consider questions or issues that some students will find sensitive. Before embarking on these lessons, ground rules are established which prohibit inappropriate personal information being requested or disclosed by those taking part in the lesson.

When students ask questions, we aim to answer them honestly, within the ground rules established at the start of the sessions. When it is felt that answering a specific question would involve information at a level inappropriate to the development of the rest of the students, the question may be dealt with individually at another time.

Partnership with Parents and Carers

Information on RSE in the school curriculum is contained in the school prospectus and the RSE Policy is available on the school website, along with curriculum maps.

Parents and carers of all students are informed of the content of the RSE sessions by letter and website. They are also made aware of their right to withdraw their child from RSE, except for the statutory content in the National Science Curriculum.

Students are issued with local contact details of support organisations and services as part of their RSE lessons at this level.

Parents and carers are free to offer opinions, comments or suggestions.

6. Monitoring Arrangements

The delivery of RSE is monitored by the Curriculum Leader for PSHE/RSE through obtaining feedback from staff and students, and by monitoring the personal development books.

The programme includes annual assessments which can be used to track student progress. The data gathered will enable students' knowledge, confidence and ability to access help and support to be identified and measured. The data can be used to track individual student progress and be analysed by gender and cohort, allowing us to address any gaps in knowledge and provide targeted support where necessary.

This policy will be reviewed by the Principal and Governors biannually. At every review, the policy will be approved by the Governing Board.

7. Parents' Right to Withdraw

The Relationships Education, Relationships and Sex Education, and Health Education regulations 2019 (made under sections 34 and 35 of the Children and Social Work Act 2017) confirms the 1996 Education Act, that parents have the right to withdraw their child from part, or all of the sex education programme that does not form part of the national science or health education curriculum. There is no parental right of withdrawal from the science, relationship or health education curriculum, which includes understanding the adolescent body. Parental withdrawal applies up to three terms before a student is sixteen, at this point the student can decide for themselves.

If a parent wishes to discuss withdrawal, they should discuss this with the Curriculum Leader for RSE/PSHE or the Principal. We would encourage parents to discuss any concerns at the earliest opportunity.

The Principal and Curriculum Leader for PSHE/RSE will help parents identify and discuss the impact and implications of withdrawal for their child, including the benefits of receiving this important education and any detrimental effects that withdrawal might have on the child. This could include any social and emotional effects of being excluded, as well as the likelihood of the child hearing their peers' version of what was said in the classes, rather than what was said directly by the teacher.

Parents should make it clear which aspect of the programme they do not wish their child to participate in (please see Appendix for full details of programme content) this will be documented, and they may be asked to put their request in writing. Resources and information regarding further support and help will be made available.

8. Policy Development

This policy has been developed in consultation with staff, students and parents. The consultation and policy development process involved the following steps:

- 1 Review The Strategic Lead for Emotional Health and Wellbeing and a wider working group pulled together all relevant information including relevant national and local guidance.
- 2 Staff consultation School staff were given the opportunity to look at the policy and make recommendations.
- 3 Parent/stakeholder consultation Parents and any interested parties were invited to attend a meeting about the policy and express their views, which were considered.
- 4 Student consultation We consulted with groups of students regarding the content of lessons and their identified priorities for RSE knowledge and skills.
- 5 Ratification Once amendments were made the policy was shared with Governors.
- 6 The policy was shared with parents and the wider community for the duration of the consultation timeframe, feedback considered in the final stage of development.
- 7 Ongoing evaluation of the policy in practice
- 8 Ongoing consultation with community focus group.

9. Training

Our RSE lead offers CPD to Heads of Year and Year teams on a regular basis to support team learning. We recognise that staff require support and training and an opportunity to become familiar and confident with the programme. We are therefore developing form tutors as a specialist team of staff as they are best placed to support students pastorally.

Guidance is provided on responding to students' questions in and out of the classroom, differentiation on developmental or cognitive basis and the use of single sex and/or small group work. Interactive and distancing techniques are used in conjunction with establishing ground rules.

Opportunities for external training for staff on the delivery of RSE will also be sought and provided, if the opportunity arises, to supplement inhouse training.

The Principal will also invite visitors from outside the school, such as school nurses or sexual health professionals, to provide support and training to staff teaching RSE.

Visitors will be utilised to enhance and supplement the planned curriculum based on their expertise. Visitors will not be left as the sole person responsible for students at any time.

The School Nursing Service is informed of the content of the programme and we are looking for further ways to develop this partnership. For example, the School Nurse is involved in the planning and delivery of sessions as appropriate and where gaps of expertise have been identified.

Current information on local/national trends and up to date research is also disseminated.

10. Safeguarding

Teachers are aware that effective RSE, which brings an understanding of what is, and what is not appropriate in a relationship, can lead to a disclosure of a child protection issue.

Safeguarding procedures, as specified by Keeping Children Safe in Education, are followed. All referrals, whatever their origin, will be taken seriously and considered with an open mind, which does not pre-judge the situation. The procedures adopted for handling cases of neglect, physical, emotional, sexual abuse and failure to thrive involving children and young persons, are based on the principle that the interests and welfare of the child or young person are of paramount importance.

Confidentiality must not prevent action if the child is 'at risk'. Teachers will listen to anything a child tells them in confidence. However, if a teacher feels that a child is at risk then the appropriate people will be contacted in accordance with the Child Protection Procedures, a copy of which is available for parents in school.

11. Complaints Procedure

Complaints about content and/or delivery of the RSE programme will be addressed to the Principal or Governors, according to the School's Complaints Procedure Policy.

Under the 2002/Academies Act 2010 all schools must provide a balanced and broadly-based curriculum which: promotes the spiritual, moral, cultural, mental and physical development of students at the school and of society, and prepares students at the school for the opportunities, responsibilities and experiences of later life.

Section 80A of the Education Act 2002 and section 403 of the Education Act 1996 require schools to place emphasis upon relationships, supporting students understanding and skills in developing positive and healthy relationships through a programme of RSE. The RSE, PSHEE and SMSC programmes and policies are written with reference to each other, and delivery is coordinated through a Personal Development team led by the Vice Principal, Culture and Ethos.

Year 7

Year 8

Rights responsibilities and British values Desert Island Living Desert Island (Building a community) Desert Island (Making decisions) Criminals, Law and Society Law making in the UK. Prisons reform and punishment	Celebrating diversity and equality LGBT What is it? Homophobia in School Supporting those that are LGBT Challenging homophobia Transphobia Coming Out	Relationships and sex education (RSE) Healthy Relationships Dealing with conflict Sexual Orientation Gender Identity Introduction to contraception What is Love Periods and Menstrual Cycle	Staying safe online and offline (CSE) County Lines County Lines (who is at risk) Substance Misuse Online Safety – Cyber Bullying Grooming Boys and Girls Drugs (Alcohol Safety) Child exploitation online	Health and wellbeing Health and Wellbeing What is Mental Health Positive Body Image Child Abuse Types of Bullying Healthy eating and Cholesterol Stress management	Life Beyond school Employability Skills Practice Proud to be me + Careers. Career Interests and Job ideas Self Esteem and the Media Labour Market Information Exploring Careers
---	---	--	--	--	--

Year 9

Rights responsibilities and British values	Staying safe online and offline (CSE)	Relationships and sex education (RSE)	Celebrating Diversity and Equality/RSE	Health and wellbeing	Life Beyond school
Conspiracy Theories and Extremist Narratives Extremism What is Terrorism Proud to be British The Radicalisation process Counter Terrorism Anti-Semitism	Introduction to Drugs Different Types of Addictions Cannabis Products Drug Classifications Party Drugs Illegal Drugs Volatile Substance Abuse	Sexual Consent and the Law FGM and the Law Delaying Sexual activity Why have Sex. Relationships and Partners What are STI's	STI Lesson Contraceptives Available Condom Lesson Contraception Explored further Sexual Harassment and Stalking HIV and AIDS AIDS prejudice and Discrimination	Self Esteem Changes What is a penis? What is a vulva? HBT – Bullying in all its forms. Dealing with grief and loss Media and airbrushing Cancer Prevention Healthy Lifestyle	From failure to success First Aid lesson Importance of Happiness What is Anger? Saving and Managing Money Employment and Financial Social Media and Online Stress

Year 10

Rights responsibilities and British values	Celebrating Diversity and Equality	Life Beyond School (Careers and Enterprise)	Relationships and Sex Education (RSE)	Life Beyond School Careers and Enterprise	Health and Wellbeing/ Staying Safe Online and Offline (RSE)
Saving and managing Money Employment Rights Careers and Enterprise (Work Experience) Employability skills practice (Labour Market Information) Targeted advertising and your data Exploring a paycheck Employment rights	Exploring Britishness and British Values Critical Thinking and Fake news Women's Rights and Equality Me Too Gender Equality Sources of Law	Consumer Rights How do my subjects link to careers? Post 16 options CV Writing Interview preparation	FGM Youth Produced Sexual Imagery Online Pornography Attitudes to Pornography Domestic Abuse and Violence Relationships, Sexual Abuse and Rape Sexualisation of the Media	Instagram generation Marriage and Family, what is it? Rights and responsibilities Consumer Rights Work experience reflection	Child Abuse (CSE) Screen Time and Safe Use Mobiles Common Types of Mental Health Self Harm Suicide (Thoughts and Feelings) Promoting Emotional Wellbeing

Year 11

Life Beyond School/ Health and	Rights, Responsibilities	Relationships and Sex Education	Staying Safe Online and Offline
Wellbeing	And British Values	(RSE)	
(Your Future and Beyond) Planning for your future Personal branding Making applications post 16 Writing a personal statement Time Management Exam Stress and Relaxation	Celebrating Diversity and Equality Aid and Supporting Other Countries Fairtrade Peace War and Conflict LGBT Rights and British Values What is a cult? What are Human Rights? Exploring Human Rights	Child on Child Bullying Fertility and what impacts it Abortion Laws, Morals and Ethics Testicular and Prostate Cancer Cervical, Breast and Ovarian Cancer Parenthood Love and Abuse	Honour Based Violence Forced Marriages Modern Day Slavery Causes of Knife Crime Festivals and Drugs and Nitrou Oxide Online Gambling Online Rep and Digital Footprints

13. Coverage in Science Curriculum

Students should know

- All aspects of health can be affected by choices they make in sex and relationships, positively or negatively, eg physical, sexual and reproductive health
- The facts about reproductive health, including fertility and the potential impact of lifestyle on fertility for men and women
- The facts about the full range of contraceptive choices, efficacy and options available
- The facts around pregnancy
- How the different sexually transmitted infections (STIs), including HIV/AIDs, are transmitted, how risk can be reduced through safer sex (including through condom use)
- About the prevalence of some STIs, the impact they can have on those who contract them and key facts about treatment

Appendix 1

DFE KS4 Learning Outcomes – RSE and relevant Health Education

By the end of secondary school:

Families	 Students should know That there are different types of committed, stable relationships. How these relationships might contribute to human happiness and their importance for bringing up children. What marriage is, including their legal status e.g. that marriage carries legal rights and protections not available to couples who are cohabiting or who have married, for example, in an unregistered religious ceremony. Why marriage is an important relationship choice for many couples and why it must be freely entered into. The characteristics and legal status of other types of long-term relationships. The roles and responsibilities of parents with respect to raising of children, including the characteristics of successful parenting. How to determine whether other children, adults or sources of information are trustworthy; judge when a family, friend, intimate or other relationship is unsafe (and to recognise this in other relationships); and how to seek help or advice, including reporting concerns about others, if needed.
Respectful relationships, including friendships	 Students should know The characteristics of positive and healthy friendships (in all contexts, including online) including trust, respect, honesty, kindness, generosity, boundaries, privacy, consent and the management of conflict, reconciliation and ending relationships. This includes different (non-sexual) types of relationships. Practical steps they can take in a range of different contexts to improve or support respectful relationships. How stereotypes, in particular, stereotypes based on sex, gender, race, religion, sexual orientation or disability, can cause damage (e.g. how they might normalise non-consensual behaviour or encourage prejudice). That in school and in wider society they can expect to be treated with respect by others, and that in turn they should show due respect to others, including people in positions of authority and due tolerance of other people's beliefs. About different types of bullying (including cyberbullying), the impact of bullying, responsibilities of bystanders to report bullying and how and where to get help. That some types of behaviour within relationships are criminal, including violent behaviour and coercive control. What constitutes sexual harassment and sexual violence and why these are always unacceptable. The legal rights and responsibilities regarding equality (particularly with reference to the protected characteristics as defined in the Equality Act 2010) and that everyone is unique and equal.

Online and	Students should know
media	 Their rights, responsibilities and opportunities online, including that the same expectations of behaviour apply in all contexts, including online. About online risks, including that any material someone provides to another has the potential to be shared online and the difficulty of removing potentially compromising material placed online. Not to provide material to others that they would not want shared further and not to share personal material which is sent to them. What to do and where to get support to report material or manage issues online. The impact of viewing harmful content. That specifically sexually explicit material e.g. pornography presents a distorted picture of sexual behaviours, can damage the way people see themselves in relation to others and negatively affect how they behave towards sexual partners. That sharing and viewing indecent images of children (including those created by children) is a criminal offence which carries severe penalties, including jail. How information and data is generated, collected, shared and used online.
Being safe	Students should know
	 The concepts of, and laws relating to, sexual consent, sexual exploitation, abuse, grooming, coercion, harassment, rape, domestic abuse, forced marriage, honour-based violence and FGM, and how these can affect current and future relationships. How people can actively communicate and recognise consent from others, including sexual consent, and how and when consent can be withdrawn (in all contexts, including online).
Intimate and sexual relationships, including sexual health	 Students should know How to recognise the characteristics and positive aspects of healthy one-to-one intimate relationships, which include mutual respect, consent, loyalty, trust, shared interests and outlook, sex and friendship. That all aspects of health can be affected by choices they make in sex and relationships, positively or negatively, e.g. physical, emotional, mental, sexual and reproductive health and wellbeing. The facts about reproductive health, including fertility and the potential impact of lifestyle on fertility for men and women. That there are a range of strategies for identifying and managing sexual pressure, including understanding peer pressure, resisting pressure and not pressurising others. That they have a choice to delay sex or to enjoy intimacy without sex. The facts about the full range of contraceptive choices, efficacy and options available. The facts around pregnancy, including miscarriage. That there are choices in relation to pregnancy (with medically and legally accurate, impartial information on all options, including keeping the baby, adoption, abortion and where to get further help). How the different sexually transmitted infections (STIs), including HIV/AIDs, are transmitted, how risk can be reduced through safer sex (including through condom use) and the importance of and facts about testing. About the prevalence of some STIs, the impact they can have on those who contract them and key facts about treatment. How the use of alcohol and drugs can lead to risky sexual behaviour. How to get further advice, including how and where to access confidential sexual and reproductive health advice and treatment.